Neath Port Talbot AGENDA
S==—> (astell-nedd Port Talbot

County Borough Council Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol

CABINET SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
2.00 pom THURSDAY, 5 MARCH 2020

COUNCIL CHAMBER - PORT TALBOT CIVIC CENTRE

Part 1
1. Declarations of Interests

To scrutinise information and monitoring issues being
reported by:

2. Customer Services - Performance (Pages 3 - 16)

3.  Pre-decision Scrutiny
e To select appropriate items from the Cabinet agenda for pre-
decision scrutiny (cabinet reports enclosed for Scrutiny
Members)

4.  Forward Work Programme 2019/20 (Pages 17 - 22)

5. Urgent Items
Any urgent items (whether public or exempt) at the discretion of the
Chairman pursuant to Section 100B (4) (b) of the Local
Government Act 1972

S.Phillips
Chief Executive

Civic Centre
Port Talbot Friday, 28 February 2020




Committee Membership:

Chairperson: Councillor M.Harvey

Vice Councillor S.Rahaman
Chairperson:

Councillors: S.apDafydd, S.E.Freeguard, N.T.Hunt, S.K.Hunt,
S.A.Knoyle, A.Llewelyn, S.Miller, R.Mizen,
J.D.Morgan, S.Paddison, L.M.Purcell, S.M.Penry,
S.H.Reynolds and A.N.Woolcock

Notes:

(1) If Committee Members or non-Committee Members wish to have
relevant items put on the agenda for future meetings, then please
notify the Chief Executive/Chair eight days before the meeting.

(2) If non-Committee Members wish to attend for an item of interest, then
prior notification needs to be given (by 12.00 noon on the day before
the meeting). Non-Committee Members may speak but not vote, or
move or second any motion.

(3) For pre scrutiny arrangements, the Chair will normally recommend
forthcoming executive items for discussion/challenge. It is also open
to Committee Members to request items to be raised - though
Members are asked to be selective here in regard to important
issues.

(4) The relevant Cabinet Board Members will also be invited to be
present at the meeting for Scrutiny/ Consultation purposes.

(5) Would the Scrutiny Committee Members please bring the Cabinet
Board papers with them to the meeting.



Agenda Item 2

u Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

N Neath Port Talbot Council
-

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Cabinet Scrutiny Committee
5t March 2020

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive & Chief Digital Officer
Karen Jones

Matter for Information

Wards Affected: All Wards

Report Title

Customer Services — Performance.

Purpose of the Report:

This report is to provide an overview of the service provided by
Customer Services, an outline of the recent performance of the
service and the improvements planned for the service in the next
twelve months.

Executive Summary:

Customer Services provides a focal point for customer contact and
deals with in excess of 170,000 customer contacts each year.

Page 3



Customer Services staff handle a wide range of enquiries handling
entire transactions (end to end) or completing part of the transaction
dependent upon the service model in operation.

The service comprises of:

Two One Stop Shops located at the main reception areas at Neath
and Port Talbot. The One Stop Shops provide the initial point of
contact for all visitors to the civic centres and field a wide range of
enquiries and requests for service. The current staffing complement
is seven permanent employees (full and part time staff) plus one
modern apprentice.

The Contact Centre is located at the Quays along with the CCTV
service. The Contact Centre is the initial point of contact for all
general enquiries made to the Council’s principal service number
01639 686868. The service also acts as the contact point for a range
of services, through the main telephone number, emails and social
media posts. It also provides cover for the out of hours function of the
Council up to 7pm in the evening and from 7am-8:30am Monday to
Friday. The current staffing complement is eight permanent
employees (full and part time staff) plus two modern apprentices.

Staff work flexibly between the Contact Centre and the One Stop
Shops with One Stop Shop staff also able to handle telephone calls
when demand so requires.

Background and Analysis:

Customer Services - One Stop Shops

For the period 1/4/2019 to 31/1/2020 there were 48,484 visitors to the

One Stop Shops. Reception enquiries totalled 34,455 and OSS
enquiries were 14,029.

Page 4



Customers are initially received at the main reception desk. Where
customers wish to receive a service, rather than just information or
direction, there are dedicated service desks, with interview rooms
also available for members of the public who require a private
discussion.

The One Stop Shops provide a wide range of services on a face to
face basis:

Issues affecting the performance of the One Stop Shops in the past
12 months:

Bus Pass Renewals and Enquiries

Until 2019, the service processed applications for bus passes at
the one stop shops in one transaction. Transport for Wales
determined that they would move bus pass services to a digital
platform, to be managed “once for Wales”. This meant that the
one stop shops would no longer provide the service - the role
changing to one of advice and guidance. We are also able to
offer digital assistance to those unable to use the online service
without help.

The changeover to Transport for Wales in September 2019 was
poorly communicated and caused a massive increase in callers
in a very short period of time. Transport for Wales’s website
experienced technical problems due to the unprecedented
volume of online applications. In the coming months a decision
will be made by TfW /Welsh Government on whether bus
passes remain with Transport for Wales or returns responsibility
to NPTCBC for administering new applications/renewals.

Staffin

Some £500,000 of staff costs have been taken out of the
service since 2008. The current staff group is ageing and there
is a need to address succession planning.

Page 5



Four Modern Apprentices have been recruited since April 2019,
complementing the existing two apprentices already in place.
There is a significant induction programme for any new staff
coming into the service however, while new staff are
undergoing training, transaction times are generally longer
whilst they learn the role, systems and procedures and there
are demands placed on existing staff to provide support and
assistance.

Blue Badges

Blue Badge services operate on a “drop in” basis — there is no
requirement to make an appointment. This results in times
when service demand outstrips the staffing resource available.
The Government has released an on-line service which is
beginning to be taken up.

On average we expect to issue between 3,000-4,500 Blue
Badges per year. However, there are years where the volume
of service requests can significantly exceed this due to the
timing of when individual badges expire.

Blue Badge Transactions

AUTOMATIC 3,134
APPLICATIONS

NEW 591
RENEWAL 2,463
REPLACEMENT 80
DISCRETIONARY 1,502
APPLICATIONS

NEW 530
RENEWAL 938
REPLACEMENT 34
Total 4,636

Page 6




Customer Services - Contact Centre

In 2018/19, the Contact Centre received 119,551 calls and circa
7,000 emails. From April 2019 to January 2020 the Contact Centre
has received over 105,000 calls. It is expected that caller demand will
exceed the previous year’s total figure.

Circa 30% of the calls received are “switchboard” style enquiries,
“can | speak to...” or “can | speak to someone about...”. The staff
have an in depth knowledge of the services operated by the council
so are able to ensure that the caller has their enquiry resolved.

The Contact Centre provides a wide range of services over the
telephone and by email.

In 2019, demands placed on the Call Centre saw an increase in
customers in Quarter 1 & 2 as well as a corresponding increase in
time spent in dealing with these customers, compared with previous
years. (Appendix 1 & Appendix 2). This increase in time spent on
calls and the increase in the number of calls resulted in a very high
demand on the Contact Centre throughout the summer. This affected
the time people were waiting to have their call answered and the
number of calls abandoned by the caller.

The combination of the following events explains the pressures
experienced by the Service:

Green Garden Bags —

This scheme generated an increase in calls, resulting in increased
call handling time (Appendix 2). Initially, callers reported they
hadn’t received bags (they could see neighbours and other streets
had received them). This was followed by calls about the charge
being levied for replacement bags (most callers were complaining
about being charged for bags, often alleging that they had not
received the initial supply).

Page 7



Side Waste Scheme Van Permits and Pest Control Charges

Changes were introduced limiting van permits to 12 permits in one
year, compared with no limits on permits previously. Pest control
charges were also increased. Changes to these policies have
resulted in longer conversations being held with service users as
the changes were unpopular initially. Over time, callers have
become more accepting of the new changes and use permits
more efficiently i.e. take fuller loads at one time. With regard to
the pest control charges, people soon accepted the new fees
when they realised they were either cheaper or on a par with
private companies.

New Equipment

In April 2019, the Contact Centre ICT systems were upgraded as
part of a major infrastructure replacement programme that has
been rolled out across the Council. Initially, the introduction of the
new system was not without problems and resulted in some
downtime for the Contact Centre as users were set up and the
correct software was added/updated. These issues were short
term, and each issue was resolved satisfactorily. However it
added to pressures in maintaining answer rates during a busy
time.

Staffing

The four additional Modern Apprentices all began their induction
training in the Contact Centre before being rotated into other
aspects of the service. As for the One Stop Shops, transaction
times will be longer whilst people are in training. A Senior
Customer Services Officer role has been created from within the
existing complement of staff — one in the One Stop Shops and
one in the Contact Centre. New recruits now have a dedicated
mentor and demands on other staff members have reduced
accordingly. This new arrangement was introduced in Quarter 2.

Page 8



Not all of the Modern Apprentices will wish to have a permanent
role in the Service, consequently, there will be an ongoing need to
recruit and develop staff into entry level positions within the
service.

Planned Service Improvements

The Service captures detailed information about the number and type
of enquiries handled. Analysis of data for 2019-20 indicating the
highest volume of demand is shown in Appendix 3.

There are a number of changes to be implemented over the next 12
months to respond to:

e Changing preferences of our customers — more customers want
to transact on line rather than face to face;

¢ Improvements in technology — there is greater scope to
automate some of the more straightforward transactions
through service such as chat bots, web chat and automated
switchboard functions;

¢ Increased complexity of some customers — in common with
many other services we are seeing a small but significant
number of people presenting with complex needs. Freeing up
staff time from more mundane tasks to concentrate resources
on those that need the most help is a key objective; and

¢ Financial Pressures —the service needs to continue to find new
sources of income or savings as part of the Council’s wider
budget situation. With the much reduced number of staff
available, resilience is a challenge across three sites
particularly at peak times.

The following actions are to be taken forward in 2020-21 to respond
to the above:

Page 9



One Stop Shops

will no longer
provide a drop
in service at
the one stop
shops —
customers will
still be able to
get vouchers, if
eligible from
the relevant
service.

Blue Badge Promote take | Customer March 2020
Service up of the on- Services
line service Manager
(Target 900
customers)
Move to an Customer April 2020
appointments | Services
only service Manager
Bus Passes Provide a Team Leader — | April 2020
digital assist One Stop
service for Shops
ongoing
customers
Continue to Digital March 2020
promote take Inclusion
up of the on- Ambassador
line bus pass
service
Food Notify food Team Leader - | April 2020
Vouchers banks that we | One Stop Shop

Page 10




Digital Assist | Review the Customer July 2020
physical and Services
technical Manager
environment to
introduce
better use of
technology to
manage
visitors
Contact Centre
Switchboard Introduce the Team Leader — | June 2020
automated Contact Centre
switchboard
(10-15,000
calls)
Further Automate Customer September
develop web- | routine web- Services 2020
chat and chat | based/on-line | Manager
bots transactional
services
Improve the Mobilise the Customer September
handling of e functionality of | Services 2020
mail enquiries | the new Manager

technology to
enable better
handling of e

mail enquiries

Page 11




Financial Impacts:

The measures set out above are necessary to enable the service to
continue to provide an acceptable level of service at a time when
demands are changing and there is an ongoing need to reduce the
net cost of services.

Integrated Impact Assessment:

Older and disabled people will be most impacted by the changes to
services provided by the One Stop Shop. Detailed assessments will
be carried out, together with consultation where necessary prior to
changes being implemented.

People unable to use the on-line services will still be able to access
face to face and telephone services in line with the policy currently
adopted by Members.

Valleys Communities Impacts:

For those people living in valley communities who are able to engage
with on-line services, the improvements highlighted above will be
beneficial as services will be accessible 24/7 from wherever they
need to access the services from, removing the need for people to
phone or travel to the urban centres.

For those who wish to access the on-line services but need to have
support to achieve that, the Council requires the community anchor
organisations funded by the Third Sector Grants Scheme to provide
such digital support.

Workforce Impacts:

The measures set out above have been discussed with staff and will
require continuous remodelling of roles and re-skilling. Staff are keen
that these changes are implemented in the next 12 months as the
current service model is placing unacceptable pressure on the
reduced staff at peak times.

Page 12



Legal Impacts:
No Implications.

Risk Management Impacts:

e There is a risk that without implementing the changes set out
above that performance will deteriorate again in the next 12
months

e There is a risk that without implementing the changes, staff
morale will deteriorate and sickness levels will increase. Staff
may also choose to leave the service

e There is a risk that the Council will lose the opportunity to
improve access to services if the new technologies are not
deployed as set out above.

Consultation:

There will be a requirement for public consultation on some of the
proposed changes to the service. This will take before
implementation. We will also be seeking customer feedback during
the implementation process and on an ongoing basis so that we can
adjust the service where necessary.

Recommendations:
That the committee notes the report.

Officer Contact:

Mrs K Jones, Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer
Tel:01639 763284 e-mail: k.jones3@npt.gov.uk

Mr D Giles, ICT Service Manager

Tel: 01639 686258 e-mail: d.b.giles@npt.gov.uk

Mr C Cole, Operational Manager — Customer Services

Tel: 01639 686167 e-mail c.j.cole@npt.gov.uk

Page 13


tel:01639
mailto:k.jones3@npt.gov.uk
mailto:d.b.giles@npt.gov.uk

Appendix 1

Call volumes 2017 to Q2 2019

14000
12188 12418
12000 137111630 e
11201 11295 10958
10790 10767 10848 10858 . 1 07 g 10 [ 10809
UG 10072 . 10257 . %040 10072
10000
8000
6913 6636
6000
4000
2000
0
AA A A A w-"v;v; 5 9 9
A PNV '» d yow o9 9
RN ,0,0.‘ (\, ,,0.0,‘ R
‘,Q@\:S\\\s\\)voaeﬂoé‘\oq\'»Qe\;@\&@'b‘\\o "\ Qm"\'o@\!@‘gz\g‘\o\\)v&‘,e@

Appendix 2
Average talk time per call2017to Q2 2019
180
% 153
4
140
17 120
1 115 10 114 1 115 10
101
........................ LT T T A B T
100 9L %
2 B 3
60
40
20
0
A J %%%%5%%%@@9@%9@
'\r h hY '\ ’\v by Yooy N\ y Ry N kS b
Sy b & Y eSS X
vﬁ‘@ & Q’%&0“\& 0 ¥ @d@“’ v°¢ &9 v&,&‘&ms\@w @y v"%e"ﬁ
o

Page 14



Appendix 3

Customer Contacts to Customer services only

Call Type April May | June | July |August|September| October |[November|(December| January |February
Switchboard 2572 | 2935 | 2589 | 3422 | 3017 3522 3488 3253 2184 3480 1978 32440
0SS other 2679 | 3011 | 2546 | 3035 | 2450 2430 2941 2797 1849 2156 1249 27143
Blue Badges/Bus passes 1239 | 1305 | 1112 | 1405 | 1260 3190 1720 1332 778 1185 677 15203
Promotion of Online Services 1815 | 1526 | 1235 | 1247 | 1344 1132 1242 1257 1295 1765 1091 14949
Absence line 446 412 325 446 331 488 583 570 525 747 364 5237
Building Maintenance 347 379 466 392 233 447 523 498 349 573 318 4525
Gen Council info 470 424 236 292 324 379 337 386 293 420 358 3919
Waste Enforcement/ Dogs 403 436 300 437 319 312 356 345 256 400 229 3793
Council Tax- 0SS 326 305 245 291 321 443 427 357 234 478 197 3624
Neighbourhood 202 278 266 370 299 254 254 243 131 236 163 2696
Internal/external caller 342 353 327 360 228 122 173 155 114 148 83 2405
NPT Homes/ non Council info 146 220 161 174 188 218 195 158 86 150 97 1793
Highways & pot holes 142 104 91 122 107 159 151 167 97 170 149 1459
Drainage & severe weather 32 28 21 51 87 133 218 107 123 108 90 998
Lighting 31 38 33 32 32 32 59 78 41 93 40 509
Food vouchers 18 21 13 20 22 28 20 14 15 29 12 212
Total 120905
Customer Contacts including self serve

Call Type April May | June | July |August|September| October [November|December| January |February
Recycling & van permits 6512 | 6928 | 5666 | 6182 | 5592 4947 4830 4584 4018 6030 3215 58504
Bulks 1160 | 1183 | 1143 | 1645 | 1376 1323 1437 1551 945 1597 972 14332
Refuse & Trade Waste 1743 | 1431 975 1041 895 846 964 826 726 1079 508 11034
Neighbourhood 202 278 266 370 299 254 254 243 131 236 163 2696
Pest Control/ EHTS 182 403 303 456 351 282 297 266 145 315 159 3159
Total 89725

Page 15




This page is intentionally left blank



/T abed

Cabinet Scrutiny Committee
Forward Work Programme 2019/20

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Officer
29 May 2019
19 June 2019
10 July 2019 Public Service Board — Annual Report Karen Jones
31 July 2019
25 September 2019 g:?eli;r?;g;c;ﬁei?%rgrggggiﬂteess) on Wellbeing Objective 2 (To build | p piic Services

Board

Version 7 - 13 February 2020

Officer Responsible: Charlotte Davies

7 Wwal| epuaby



gT obed

2 October 2019

Periodic report on the progress of work against the Wales Audit
Proposals for Improvement

Karen Jones/
Caryn Furlow

30 October 2019

20 November 2019

(Joint Meeting of Cabinet/Education Skills and Culture Scrutiny
Committees to scrutinise the Margam park/Pontardawe Arts Centre
Proposals, immediately before Cabinet Scrutiny)

4 December 2049
CANCELLED

Version 7 - 13 February 2020

Officer Responsible: Charlotte Davies




6T obed

- moved to

9th December at
10.00am

10 January 2020
(Change of Date)

**Budget on Cabinet**

5 February 2020

To view the impacts of the decisions on the Valleys Action Plan
(Included in Cabinet Board Report)

Karen Jones/
Fiona Clay-Pool

To view the impacts of the decisions on the welsh language
promotion Strategy (Included in welsh language report on Cabinet)

Karen Jones/
Rhian Headon/
Caryn Furlow

12 February 2019

Version 7 - 13 February 2020

Officer Responsible: Charlotte Davies




0¢ abed

19 February 2020

5 March 2020

**Budget™*

Customer services report (from meeting of 2"4 October)

1 April 2020

29 April 2020

27 May 2020

Items to be programmed in for future meetings

Version 7 - 13 February 2020

Officer Responsible: Charlotte Davies




T¢ obed

e Evaluation Structure for Wellbeing Objective 2 — Public Services Board

e Public Services Board — updates on Wellbeing Objective 4 (To support wellbeing through work and in
the workplace). - TBC Public Services Board

e Updates and monitoring of the Citizens Panel

Version 7 - 13 February 2020 Officer Responsible: Charlotte Davies



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Customer Services - Performance
	4 Forward Work Programme 2019/20

